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CITY OF SANTA BARBARA


ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT

AGENDA DATE:
April 24, 2012
TO:
Ordinance Committee 
FROM:
Finance Department, Environmental Services Division


City Attorney’s Office
SUBJECT:

Proposed Single-Use Bag Ordinance
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Ordinance Committee review a draft Single-Use Bag Ordinance and provide direction to staff.  

DISCUSSION:
On July 12, 2011, the City Council directed staff to: (1) work with the Ordinance Committee to develop an ordinance making elements of the voluntary Where’s Your Bag? Program mandatory; and, (2) to place a ballot initiative to assess a fee on plastic bags, paper bags, or both on the next regularly scheduled election. On March 13, 2012, Council reconsidered its previous July 12, 2011 direction and, instead, requested staff and the Ordinance Committee to develop a possible City ordinance to ban single-use plastic bags and to require stores to charge a fee on single-use paper bags. Pursuant to Council direction, the proposed ordinance would also incorporate the following elements: 

· The ordinance would apply to supermarkets, pharmacies, retail stores and convenience stores of a certain size or sales volume as determined appropriate;

· Stores would not be required to use the revenue collected from the fee on paper bags for any specific use other than to promote the use of reusable bags and to educate the public on the environmental concerns inherent in the use of single use bags;
· The ordinance would possibly take effect in phases, with supermarkets and large stores having to comply first followed by smaller stores;
· The ordinance would not apply to restaurants or other businesses which sell prepared food;

· The ordinance would exempt product or produce bags (for meat, vegetables, and bulk food items), newspaper bags, medications bags and dry cleaning bags; and 
· The ordinance would exempt clients of the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Program and other food assistance programs.
Environmental Review
As with many similar single-use bag ordinances adopted recently by various cities and counties in California, the proposed single-use bag ordinance would first be subject to appropriate environmental review under CEQA. In order to possibly avoid any valid CEQA-related challenge to the adoption of a City single-use bag ordinance, the preparation of an EIR is recommended by City staff as the most prudent approach to reviewing the potential environmental impacts from such an ordinance. 
At the March 13 meeting, Council also directed staff to work with the Beach Erosion Authority for Clean Oceans (BEACON), a joint powers authority comprising several jurisdictions in Santa Barbara and Ventura Counties, in the preparation of a possible Central Coast model single-use bag ordinance and for possible contract assistance for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) environmental review of the draft ordinance. The goal would be to possibly develop both a model single-use bag ordinance and a master environmental impact report (EIR) which could serve any BEACON member in the review and possible adoption of a local single-use bag ordinance program.

As requested by Council, Staff has initiated contact with BEACON staff to develop a possible memorandum of understanding to contract for the preparation of an EIR reviewing a draft model ordinance.  The agreement would propose a cost-sharing of CEQA-related costs among the member BEACON agencies who wish to pursue a cooperative approach.

Draft Single-Use Bag Ordinance    

The proposed draft single-use bag ordinance is modeled after one adopted by Los Angeles County for the unincorporated areas of the County in November of 2010. This ordinance is similar to ordinances adopted in recent years by several cities, such as San Jose, Long Beach, Santa Monica and other smaller municipalities in California. It would ban the use of plastic bags and require that a ten cent per bag charge be collected for paper bags by all retail food store, pharmacies, and convenience stores of a certain size and dollar sales volume – depending on the size and volume parameters ultimately placed in the ordinance by the Council. Further, as has been typical for the approach taken by other cities with similar ordinances, it would also phase-in the application of the ordinance. Smaller food and convenience stores would be allowed a greater period of time for ultimate compliance – again, in a manner to be determined appropriate by the Council in finalizing the ordinance. 
The draft ordinance does not regulate bags used by restaurants, fast food establishments, or other retailers which sell no food items, such as department and clothing stores. It also does not prevent stores from providing free bags, whether reusable or paper, to those persons receiving assistance under the state “Women, Infants, and Children” (“WIC”) Program or similar food assistance programs. Finally, as drafted, the ordinance requires the stores which collect the paper bag fee to use the net revenues from these fees to promote the use of reusable bags and to educate the public on the possible negative environmental impacts which result from the use of single-use bags. 
ATTACHMENT:
Staff “Ordinance Committee Draft Ordinance” Dated April 18, 2012.  
PREPARED BY:
Matt Fore, Environmental Services Manager
SUBMITTED BY:
Robert Samario, Finance Director
APPROVED BY:
City Administrator's Office
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